
Sports Facilities Development Corporation

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Executive Conference Room6:00 PMMonday, March 2, 2020

Call to Order

Citizen Comments

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the

agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Agenda Items

1 19-9588 Minutes of November 4, 2019  

11-4-19 Minutes-Draft.pdfAttachments:

2 20-9762 Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October, November, and December 

2019.

20 1-3 Oct-Dec 2019 Fin Rpts.pdfAttachments:

3 20-9763 Contract Negotiations Committee Report

4 20-9764 Construction Committee Report

5 20-9765 Finance Committee Report

6 20-9766 Reimbursement to the City for October 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

20 12-31-19 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement.pdfAttachments:

7 20-9786 Authorize President to execute Memorandum of Understanding with American 

Cricket Enterprises for development of a cricket stadium in Grand Prairie’s 

Entertainment District

8 20-9767 Report from Lone Star Park

 

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/27/2020



March 2, 2020Sports Facilities Development 

Corporation

Meeting Agenda

Executive Session

The Sports Facilities Development Corporation may conduct a closed session pursuant to 

Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A. to discuss the following:

1. Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney”

                       Bajro Rizvic v. Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation, et al, 

                       Cause No. DC-19-06000, 193rd District Court, Dallas County, Texas

2. Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property"

3. Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

4. Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations”

Adjournment

Certification

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the Sports 

Facilities Development Corporation meeting agenda was prepared and posted February 28, 

2020.

__________________________________

Lee Harriss, Treasurer

                           

City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a 

disability that requires special arrangements, please call Lee Harriss at 972-237-8091 at 

least 24 hours in advance.  Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/27/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9588 Name: 110419 SC MINS

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:12/2/2019 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Minutes of November 4, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 11-4-19 Minutes-Draft.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Paula Elliott, Executive Assistant- Finance

Title
Minutes of November 4, 2019

Presenter
Jorja Clemson, Secretary

Recommended Action
Approve

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://grandprairie.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8098057&GUID=D285E9C8-2418-4103-9341-CEFC427E3B14


SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 4, 2019  PAGE 1  

Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation 

Regular Meeting 

November 4, 2019 

City of Grand Prairie, City Hall 

Executive Conference Room 

317 College Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas 

 
Minutes 

 
A regular meeting of the Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation was called 

to order by Mayor Jensen at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Members Present 

Ron Jensen, President 

Jorja Clemson   

R.J. Garcia 

Greg Giessner 

Michael Skinner 

Jim Swafford 

Eddie Freeman 

 

Members Absent 

None 

Staff Present 

Megan Mahan, City Attorney 

Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

Becky Brooks, Asst. Chief Financial Officer 

Paula Elliott, Recording Secretary 

Bill Crolley, Deputy City Manager 

 

 

Citizen Comments 
There were no citizens who wished to speak. 

 

1. Consider Minutes of August 5, 2019   
 

Ms. Clemson moved to approve the minutes of the August 5, 2019 meeting.  

Mr. Skinner seconded the motion. The motion carried with the following vote: 

 

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, and Swafford 

Nays:  None 

 

2.         Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for July,  August, and September 2019 
 

Ms. Harriss reviewed the Monthly Financials and Investment Reports for July, August, and September 2019.  

 

For July, base rent was $146,610, and additional rent totaled $29,648.  Interest earnings for the 

month were $37,109 for total receipts of $213,367.  Disbursements for the month were 

$1,720.  The net decrease in cash and investments was $211,647. 

The Sports Corporation had total cash & investments of $9,659,250.  

For August, Base rent was $146,610, and additional rent totaled $25,018.   Interest earnings for 

the month were $14,020 for total receipts of $185,648.  Disbursements for the month were 

$79,968.  The net decrease in cash and investments was $105,680. 



SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 4, 2019  PAGE 2  

The Sports Corporation had total cash & investments of $9,764,930.  

For September, base rent was $146,610 and additional rent totaled $10,120.  Interest earnings for 

the month were $7,527 for total receipts of $164,258.  Disbursements for the month were 

$38,194.  The net increase in cash and investments was $126,064. 

The Sports Corporation had total cash & investments of $9,890,994.  

Investment Recap: 

The Investment Recap summarizes the activity by month in the Sports Corp’s investment 

portfolio. The schedule shows a year-to-date increase of $1,323,742. The book value and market 

value of each type of investment is also shown on the report. At September 30, 2019, the Sports 
Corp had an unrealized loss of $24,961 on its securities. This has occurred as the bond market slowed. 
 

Portfolio by Type of Investment: 

Approximately 44% of the portfolio is invested in Texpool (Public Fund Investment Pool) and 

the remainder is invested in US Agency investments. In August at the last board meeting, the 

Board changed the maximum percentage allowed in each agency from 25% to 40%, as more 

investments get placed for longer terms. The portfolio complies with that new provision.  

 

Portfolio by Maturity: 

Approximately 44% of total investments mature within 31 days and none presently exceed 2 

years. Policy allows up to 5 years max maturity. The portfolio is in compliance with this limit.  

 

Weighted Average Maturity: 

As of September 30, 2019, the WAM was 95 days. Policy is a maximum WAM of 2 years. This 

portfolio is in compliance.  

 

Interest Earnings: 

The primary difference in this amount is due to the timing of when interest is received and 

reported. Interest received is on a cash basis, as is the budgeted amount. Interest earnings and 

accrued interest are on an accrual basis.  

 

Yield Compared to U.S. Treasury Bill and Texpool: 

A metric more indicative of the portfolio performance is the overall expected yield-to-maturity.  

This metric is benchmarked against monthly yield of the one year U.S. Treasury Bill and the 

average monthly yield on Texpool. Since the strategy at the Corporation is a buy and hold to 

maturity, the yield-to-maturity rate represents the final expected results. 

 

Investment Policy and Strategy: 

The portfolio continues to operate under a buy and hold strategy. In the coming months, the 

investment team will make an effort to lengthen the WAM, although a relatively flat yield curve 

complicates the decision.  

  

Mr. Swafford added that the September report is the Fiscal Year-end report, but there will be 

adjustments to discuss at the next meeting. Mr. Swafford moved to approve the Monthly 

Financial and Investment Reports for July, August, and September 2019.  

Mr. Giessner seconded the motion. The motion carried with the following vote: 

 



SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 4, 2019  PAGE 3  

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, and Swafford  

Nays:  None 

 

3.         Contract Negotiations Committee Report 
 

Mr. Skinner stated there was no report.  

 

4.         Construction Committee Report 
 

Mr. Giessner advised the report would be discussed later.   

 

5.         Finance Committee Report 
 

Mr. Swafford indicated that the finance committee had not met.     

 

6.   Reimbursement to the City for July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019 

 

Mr. Swafford directed the total amount of the reimbursement was $9,702.75.  

 

Mr. Swafford moved to approve the motion. Ms. Clemson seconded.  

The motion carried with the following vote: 

 

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, Swafford  

Nays:  None 

 

7. Sports Corporation Board Meeting Schedule FY 2020    

 

Ms. Harriss reminded the committee that the Sports Corporation normally meets the first 

Monday in February, May, August, and November.   

 

Mr. Skinner moved to approve the motion. Mr. Giessner seconded.  

The motion carried with the following vote: 

 

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, Swafford  

Nays:  None 

 

8. Resolution Authorizing the Expenditure and the Agreement for the Sports 

Corporation to Pay for Half of the Master Site Development at Lone Star Park 
 

Ms. Clemson moved to approve the resolution and that Global Gaming agrees.  

Mr. Giessner seconded. The motion carried with the following vote: 

 

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Freeman, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, Swafford  

Nays:  None 

 

 

 

 

 



SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 4, 2019  PAGE 4  

9.        Resolution approving Capital Expenditure Funds for Improvements at Lone Star Park  

 

Mayor Ron Jensen informed the committee that the State of Texas recently took equine product 

sales tax and gave it to tracks for purses. Mr. Scott Wells added that it will not quite double, but 

the projected ceiling is $25 million a year. 70% of that can go to purses and 30% will be 

dedicated to special events, promotional funds to be administered by the breed association. The 

thoroughbred group and the quarter horse group decided to split the money 50/50. The track 

hosted 16 days of quarter horse races. Mayor Jensen asked what the height of number. Mr. Wells 

said ideally 1800 – 2000 thoroughbred horses. Mr. RJ Garcia asked if the letter from the Texas 

Thoroughbred Association was sent to all tracks in Texas. Mr. Wells said LSP is the only Class 1 

track in Texas so the others probably did not receive the letter. Mr. Garcia asked if the items on 

the list were suggestions or demands. Mr. Wells said strictly suggestions. Mr. Giessner said 

however, those suggestions do address those items that I saw on my inspection. Thanks to our 

partnership with Global Gaming they have done a fantastic job taking care of what we call the 

front side and now it is time to address the back side. These Capex projects go a long way to 

getting things done. Mr. Swafford asked how many of the Capex projects had to be removed 

because of the Thoroughbred Association requests. Mr. Wells said none. They were added on. 

Mr. Kent Slabotsky commented that only one item would come off the list and everything from 

TTA would remain in tack except surveillance and that would be phased over 2 years.  

Mr. Freeman asked which items are crucial. Mr. Giessner said everything on the TTA letter. 

Those are directly related to horseman and horse stables and need to part of the Phase I items. 

Mr. Slabotsky said it can all be done.  

 

Mr. Swafford moved to approve the resolution on page 2 with the total amount to be funded at 

$986,079 and the additional $41,338 overrun on the Capex allowances to come from current 

available cash.  Mr. Giessner seconded. The motion carried with the following vote: 

 

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Freeman, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, Swafford  

Nays:  None 

 

10. Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Financial Management Policies: Reserve Requirement 

 

Ms. Becky Brooks informed that the $1,250,000 does not apply anymore as it pertains to debt. 

We suggest keep some reserve that pertains to the Capex dollar amount. If the committee does 

not want to keep a reserve, then everything can run to the bottom line.  

 

Mr. Garcia moved to remove line IX.C, and X.B. and approve the motion.  

Mr. Swafford seconded. The motion carried with the following vote: 

 

Ayes:   Jensen, Clemson, Freeman, Garcia, Giessner, Skinner, Swafford  

Nays:  None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION MINUTES, NOVEMBER 4, 2019  PAGE 5  

11. Report from Lone Star Park  

 

Mr. Slabotsky and Ms. Wimberly had no additional comments.  

 

 

Executive Session 

 

Mayor Jensen convened a closed session at 6:31 p.m. pursuant to Chapter 551, Subchapter D of 

the Government Code, V.T.C.A., Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” and Section 

551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations”. Mayor Jensen 

adjourned the closed session at 6:50 p.m.  

 

 

Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, Mayor Jensen adjourned the meeting at 6:50 pm.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Jorja Clemson, Secretary 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9762 Name: Financial and Investment Report

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:1/27/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October, November, and December 2019.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20 1-3 Oct-Dec 2019 Fin Rpts.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Lee Harriss

Title
Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October, November, and December 2019.

Presenter
Lee Harriss

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The monthly financial and investment reports for October, November, and December 2019 are attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://grandprairie.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8098074&GUID=6D139BDE-2B41-44A5-9118-18F1A00BC4D1




































City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9763 Name: Contract Negotiations Committee Report

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:1/27/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Contract Negotiations Committee Report

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Contract Negotiations Committee Report

Presenter
Mike Skinner

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9764 Name: Construction Committee Report

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:1/27/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Construction Committee Report

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Construction Committee Report

Presenter
Greg Giessner

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9765 Name: Finance Committee Report

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:1/27/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Finance Committee Report

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Finance Committee Report

Presenter
Jim Swafford

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9766 Name: Reimbursement to the City Oct-Dec 2019

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:1/27/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Reimbursement to the City for October 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20 12-31-19 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Lee Harriss

Title
Reimbursement to the City for October 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019

Presenter
Lee Harriss, Treasurer

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Consider the reimbursement to the City for staff time and out-of-pocket expenses for the period October 1,
2019 through December 31, 2019.

Financial Consideration
Attached is the billing from the City. The total amount of the reimbursement is $1,926.77.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://grandprairie.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8098072&GUID=D9E51BC2-0D4F-482E-8149-01CDD39F4FFB


Invoice Date 12/31/2019

Invoice No. LSP43830

Reimbursible Costs Incurred on Behalf of the Sports Corp.:

11/12/19 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 115.45$      

12/11/19 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 271.32$      

12/31/19 Staff Time Oct. 2019 - Dec. 2019 1,540.00$   

Total Due 1,926.77$   

1/27/2020

3:34 PM R:\Sports Corp\Billing\20 12-31-19 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement.xls 2019



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9786 Name: Authorize President to execute Memorandum of
Understanding with American Cricket Enterprises for
development of a cricket stadium in Grand Prairie’s
Entertainment District

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:2/7/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Authorize President to execute Memorandum of Understanding with American Cricket Enterprises for
development of a cricket stadium in Grand Prairie’s Entertainment District

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Authorize President to execute Memorandum of Understanding with American Cricket Enterprises for
development of a cricket stadium in Grand Prairie’s Entertainment District

Presenter

Megan Suarez Mahan, Attorney

Recommended Action

Approve

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-9767 Name: Report from LSP

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready - Committee

File created: In control:1/27/2020 Sports Facilities Development Corporation

On agenda: Final action:3/2/2020

Title: Report from Lone Star Park

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Report from Lone Star Park

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 2/28/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9588
	Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9762
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8098074&GUID=6D139BDE-2B41-44A5-9118-18F1A00BC4D1
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9763
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9764
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9765
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9766
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8098072&GUID=D9E51BC2-0D4F-482E-8149-01CDD39F4FFB
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9786
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-9767


